

# State of Wisconsin



2007 Senate Bill 110

Date of enactment: **May 30, 2007**  
Date of publication\*: **June 13, 2007**

## 2007 WISCONSIN ACT 12

AN ACT *to amend* 23.16 (3) (intro.) and 23.165 (4) (intro.) of the statutes; **relating to:** refusal by the Department of Natural Resources to reveal electronic mail addresses of subscribers.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

**SECTION 1.** 23.16 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

23.16 (3) SUBSCRIBER LISTS. (intro.) The department may refuse to reveal names ~~and~~ addresses, ~~and~~ electronic mail addresses of persons on any magazine or periodical subscriber list. The department may charge a fee to recover the actual costs for providing or for the use of any magazine or periodical subscriber list. ~~The department may not reveal names and addresses of persons as prohibited under s. 23.45 (4).~~ No person who obtains or uses any magazine or periodical subscriber list from the department may refer to the department, the magazine, or the periodical as the source of names ~~or~~ addresses, ~~or~~ electronic mail addresses unless the person clearly states

that the provision of, or permission to use, the subscriber list in no way indicates any of the following:

**SECTION 2.** 23.165 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

23.165 (4) SUBSCRIBER LISTS. (intro.) The department may refuse to reveal names ~~and~~ addresses, ~~and~~ electronic mail addresses of persons on any publication subscriber list. ~~The department may not reveal names and addresses as prohibited under s. 23.45 (5).~~ The department may charge a fee to recover the actual costs for providing or for the use of a publication subscriber list. No person who obtains or uses a publication subscriber list from the department may refer to the department or the publication as the source of names ~~or~~ addresses, ~~or~~ electronic mail addresses unless the person clearly states that the provision of, or permission to use, the subscriber list in no way indicates any of the following:

---

\* Section 991.11, WISCONSIN STATUTES 2005-06 : Effective date of acts. "Every act and every portion of an act enacted by the legislature over the governor's partial veto which does not expressly prescribe the time when it takes effect shall take effect on the day after its date of publication as designated" by the secretary of state [the date of publication may not be more than 10 working days after the date of enactment].